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The Honorable Mayor and

Members of the City Council
Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado

Independent Auditors’ Report

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of
the Colorado Springs Municipal Airpoert (Airport), an enterprise fund of the City of
Colorado Springs, Colorado, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of
Colorado Springs, Colorado’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Governmens Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasopable basis
for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Airport are intended to present the
financial position, and the changes in financial position and cash flows, of only that
poriion of the business-type activities that are attributable to the tramsactions of the
Airport. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the
City of Colorado Springs, Colorade, as of December 31, 2007, the changes in its financial
position or its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Airport as of December 31, 2007, and the changes in
its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended im conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Affiliate Offices Woridwide



The Honorable Mayor and

Members of the City Council
Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado

Page 2

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
June 5, 2008, on our consideration of the Airport’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements of the Airport. The supplementary information listed in the table of contents
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express no

opinion on it.
/%M,Z; 4G, e
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
(unaudited)

The following management’s discussion and analysis of the Colorado Springs Airport's (the Airport)
financial performance provides an overview of the financial activities of the Airport for the fiscal
yeats ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. The information contained in this discussion should be
considered in conjunction with the financial results, footnotes, and supplemental information in the
Airport's financial statements.

The Aitport's financial statements ate prepared using an accrual basis in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standatrds Board
(GASB) and othet standards-setting bodies. The Airport is structured as an enterprise fund of the
City of Colorado Springs, with revenues recognized when earned, not when received. Expenses are
recognized when incurred, not when they ate paid. Capital assets are capitalized and (except for land
and construction in progress) are depreciated over their useful lives. See notes to the financial
statements for a summatry of the Airport's significant accounting policies.

Following this MD&A ate the financial statements of the Airport together with the notes to the
financial statements, which are essential for a full understanding of the data contained herein. The
Airport's financial statements ate designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Airport's
finances.

Airport Activities Highlights

The activities of the Airport for the last three calendar years were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Enplaned Passengers 1,033,586 1,017,016 1,030,833
% increase (decrease) 1.63% -1.34% -0.38%
Aircraft Operations 155,688 140,958 165,911
% increase {decrease) 10.45% -15.04% -5.14%
Landed Weight (in thousands) 1,333,830 1,417,293 1,525,778
% mcrease (decrease) -5.89% -711% -2.43%
Freight and Mail (tons) 13,475 16,302 16,725
% increase {decrease) -17.34% -2.53% -8.29%

2007 enplanements were approximately 1.6% above 2006 due to new service from Expressfet and
Midwest Airlines. Aircraft operations were higher in 2007 primarily because of an 18% increase in
general aviation operations and a 13% increase in military operations. General aviation increased
partially because of the reopening of Runway 171./35R which had been under reconstruction during
2006. Military operations were up because of the return of the local reserve squadrons at Petetson
Air Force Base from deployment overseas. Landed weight was lower in 2007 compared to 2006 as a
result of 2 dectease in the number of scheduled flights and cargo operations. Freight and mail
decreased from 2007 to 2006 due to a reduction in the number of cargo flights flown by FedEx.



Comparing 2006 activity to 2005, enplaned passengers decreased in 2006 due to a reduction in flight
schedules. A significant factor was the consolidation of several routes as airlines reduced
frequencies in order to achieve cost savings and operational efficiencies. In addition, Mesa Airlines
withdrew theit mainline setvice from Colorado Springs in October of 2006. Another factor was the
summet closure of the Airport’s 13,500 foot east runway for rehabilitation and reconstruction.
Summer heat, coupled with the high altitude, necessitated a change in aircraft in order for aitlines to
operate on the shotter 11,000 foot west runway. These fleet changes caused a reduction in available
seats on departing flights. Airctaft operations were significantly lower in 2006 primarily because of a
15% reduction in general aviation operations and a 23% reduction in military operations. General
aviation activity was impacted by higher fuel rates in 2006. Military operations were down because
of the continued deployment of the local reserve squadrons at Peterson Air Force Base. Landed
weight was lower in 2006 compared to 2005 as a result of a decrease in the number ot scheduled
flights. Freight and mail decreased from 2006 to 2005 due to a shght reduction in the number of
cargo flights flown by FedEx and Airborne Express.

During 2007, eight major air carriers and six regional carriers suppotted the Airport with non-stop
service to sixteen majot cities. In additon, three air cargo opetators used the Airport's facilities.

Financial Highlights
Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
$ Increase $ Increase

2007 2006 {Decrease) 2005 {(Dectease)
Operating revenues $ 21,536,567 $ 21,542019 § (5,452) $ 20719348 § 822,671
Opetating expenses 14,722,292 13,804,532 917,760 13,216,784 587,748
Excess before depreciation
and other income, net 6,814,275 7,737,487 (923,212) 7,502,564 234,923
Depreciatdon and amortization 7,152,731 8,552,544 (1,399.813) 8,157,208 395,336
Opetating income (loss) (338,456) (815,057) 476,601 (654,644) (160,413)
Net nonoperating income 2344292 (17,267,116) 19,611,408 1,828,034  (19,095,150)
Capital grants and contr. 10,138,009 35,381,253 (25243 244) 5,048,091 20,733,162
Change in net assets 12,143,845 17,299,080  (5,155,235) 6,821,481 10,477,599

Net assets at beginning of year 196,161,150 178,862,070 17,299,080 172,040,589 6,821,481

Net assets at end of year $.208.304995 § 196161150 §12143845 § 178862070 §17.299.080

Significant items affecting the Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets for
2007 ate as follows:

% Although the Airport expesienced an increase in passenger traffic in 2007, operating revenues
decteased $5,452 from 2006 due primarily to a decrease in airline revenue. (ate usage fees
collected for the use of City gates decreased by 39%. Airdines utilized fewer City gates in 2007
by operating more of their daily flights at their leased gates. In addition, the Airport collected
$107,851 less in remain over night fees as compared to 2006. As operating costs continue to
tise, aitlines have reduced the number of aircraft they park on the Airport’s ramp overnight in
otder to avoid paying an additional parking fee.

e S Operating expenses increased by $917,760 as compared to 2006, primarily due to an increase in
personnel costs and runway maintenance expenditures. The Airport’s east runway was closed in
2006 for rehabilitation during which time no maintenance expenses were incurred.
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¥ The net result of the above was operating income before depreciation decreased by $923,212 for
2007. Depteciation and amottization in 2007 decteased from $8,552,544 to $7,152,731 due to
reductions in Airport capital assets subject to deprectation.

* Non-operating revenues increased from a non-operating loss of $17,267,116 in 2006 to a non-
operating gain of $2,344,292 in 2007. The change from 2006 to 2007 relates to a loss on
disposal of capital assets in 2006, attributable to the temoval of the east runway from the
Airpott’s capital assets. In addition, the Aitport’s investment income increased by 31% and
interest expense decreased by 15% as a tesult of savings realized from a bond refunding
completed 1n 2007. :

¥ Capital grant and contribution tevenues registered $10,138,009 and $35,381,253 in 2007 and
2006, respectively. The decrease is ptimarily due to capital reimbursements received mn 2006
from the FAA on the Airport’s reconstruction of the east runway. The project was completed in
eatly 2007.

» For 2007, net assets increased $12,143,845 as the result of the above activity, resulting in total .
net assets at the end of 2007 totaling $208,304,995.

Significant items affecting the Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets for
2006 are as follows:

= Although the Aitport experienced a slight decrease in passenger traffic m 2006, operaﬁng
revenues increased $822,671 from 2005 due primatily to an increase in terminal concessions and
public patking tevenues. The food/beverage and news/gifts concession revenue increased by
approximately 13% as passengets continued to take advantage of the new concession outlets at
the Airport. The completion of the public parking lot reconfiguration allowed for an increase in
shott term parking utilization as compared to 2005. In addition, the Airport raised its long term
and valet parking fees in February of 2006.

+ Operating expenses incteased by $587,748 as compared to 2005, primarly due to an increase in
personnel costs and equipment purchases. The increase was partially offset by a reduction in
other operating expenses related to professional services and repairs and maintenance.

¥ 'The net result of the above was operating income befote depteciation increased by $234,923 for
2006. Depreciation and amottization in 2006 increased from $8,157,208 to $8,552,544 due to
additions i Airport capital assets.

¥ Non-operating revenues decreased from a non-operating gain of $1,828,034 in 2005 to a non-
operating loss of §17,267,116 in 2006. The change from 2005 to 2006 relates to a loss on
disposal of capital assets in 2006, attributable to the removal of the east runway from the
Airpott’s capital assets. The runway was completely demolished in 2006. Rehabilitation wotk
on the new surface was not complete as of December 31, 2006.

¥ Capital grant and contribution revenues registered $35,381,253 and $5,648,091 in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The increase is primarily due to capital reimbursements received from the FAA on
the Aitport’s ongoing reconstruction of the east runway. The FAA awarded in excess of $38
million in AIP and PFC funding to the Airport for this project. In addition, the Airport received



$2,554,454 in capital contributions related to mfrastructute improvements and cost recovery on
several land parcels.

> For 2006, net assets increased $17,299,080 as the result of the above activity, resulting in total
net assets at the end of 2006 totaling $196,161,150.

Financial Position Summary

2007 2006 % Change 2005 % Change
Current assets $ 38205170 $ 40,572,779 -5.84% § 41,307,599 -1.78%
(including restricted cash)
Restricted Investments 5,604,162 5,834,083 -3.95% 5,834,683 0.00%
Bond issue cost (net) 852,254 601,441 41.70% 670,264  -10.27%
Note Receivable 2,138,585 1,288,586 65.96% - -
Propetty and equipment (net) 226,671,589 218,114,849 3.92% 196,314,865 11.10%
Total Assets § 273,471,760 § 266,412,338 2.65% § 244127411 9.13%
Current Liabilities $ 8837681 $ 15850853 -44.24% § 8,723,174 81.71%
Long-term debt 55,895,648 54,015,356 3.48% 56,189,010 -3.87%
(less current portion)
Other non-current liabilities 433 436 384,979 12.59% 353,157 9.01%
Net Assets:
Invested it capital assets 176,326,065 166,123,866 6.14% 136,969,435 21.29%
(net of debt)
Restricted 14,126,427 13,824,516 2.18% 19,278,062  -28.29%
Unrestricted 17,852,503 16,212,768 10.11% 22614573  -28.31%
Net Assets 208,304,995 196,161,150 6.19% 178,862,070 9.67%

Total Liabilities and net assets ~ § 273,471,760 § 266412338 2.65% § 244,127 411 9.13%

The largest portion of the Airport’s net assets each year represents its investment in capital assets
less the related indebtedness outstanding used to acquire those capital assets. The Airport uses these
capital assets to provide services to its passengers and visitors; consequently these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the Airport's investment in its capital assets is reported net
of related debt, it is noted that the resoutces required to repay this debt must be provided annually
from opetations, since it is unlikely that the capital assets themselves will be liquidated to pay
liabilities. ‘



At December 31, 2007, the amount of $14.1 million or 6.8% of net assets represented resources that
are subject to restrictions on how they can be used. For 2006, the amount was $13.8 million or
7.0%. These restricted net assets ate not available for new spending because they have already been
committed as follows:

2007 2006
Passenger Facility Charges $ 2,531,039 ¥ 2,109,390
Bond and Operating and
Maintenance Resetves 11,595,388 11,715,126
Total Restricted $ 14126427 $ 13824516

The remaining untestricted net assets of $17.9 million and $16.2 million for 2007 and 2006,
tespectively, may be used to meet any of the Airport's ongoing obligations.

Airline Signatory Rates and Chatges for 2007 and 2006

The Airport and fourteen (14) airlines and cargo catriers negotiated an agreement effective January
1, 2000, for five years, which establishes how the airlines will be assessed annual rates and charges
for their use of the Airport. The agreement establishes rates and charges through a hybrnd
commetcial compensatory methodology with a 1evenue shating component. The final rates and
chatges for the signatory aitlines were as follows (2007 rates are finalized after the issuance of these
financial statements):

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006
Landing fees (per 1,000 Ibs MGLW) & 203 $  1.77
Terminal rental rate (per sq ft) $ 55.11 $ 54.18
Loading bridge rate (per bridge) $ 49,856 $ 40,090
Signatory attline cost (per enplaned
passenger) $ 6.86 $ 651

The airline derived revenue per enplaned passenger is calculated after the settlement of all rates and
charges adjustments based on actual revenues and expenditures and inclusion of the net revenue
shating credited to the aitlines, which was $1,863,896 (preliminary) and $1,717,867 in 2007 and 2006,

respectively.

Duting 2004, the Airport and the airlines successfully negotiated an extension of the existing Use
and Lease Agreement is effective from January 1, 2005, through December 31, 2009, with similar
terms and conditions.

Passenger Facility Charges

In December 1992, the Airport received approval from the Federal Aviation Administration (the
FAA) to collect a $3.00 passenger facility charge (PFC) on each passenger enplaning at the Airpott.
The Airport has collected PFCs including interest earnings thercon, totaling $52,904,852 and

7



$50,220,015 through the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Additional
information regarding PFCs can be found in Note A(3) of the accompanying financial statements.

Customer Facility Chazges

In 1994, the City of Colorado Springs issued $6,093,000 aggregate principal amount of its Special
Facility Bonds to finance the construction of service and storage facilities for rental car companies
located on the Airport. The customer facility charge (CFC) was originally established to pay the
“debt setvice and expired on September 1, 2004. When the bonds were retired, there was an excess
within the fund of $3,576,541. Pet the bond documents, these funds were given to the Airport
where $250,000 was set aside as teserved funds per the rental car agreement and the remaining was
recorded as CFC revenue on the financial statements.

An ordinance (04-32) was approved by the City Council on March 23, 2004, allowing the Airport to
continue to collect the CFC. The collection rate of $1.50 per rental car contract date remains in
effect. The rate cannot exceed $2.50 per tental car contract date without City Council approval.

Financial Details
Revenues Overview:

The following schedule presents a summary of all revenues for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 with a comparison of changes in dollar amounts to the previous years.

Year End Year End $ Increase/ Year End $ Increase
12/31/2007 12/31/2006 (Decrease) 12/31/2005 ({Dectease)

Operating Revenues

Airline $ 7,797,852 § 8,176,697 $ (378,845 § 8240691 § (63,994
‘Terminal Building 1,678,165 1,563,121 115,044 1,421,576 141,545
Parking 6,256,899 6,181,680 75,219 5,442,665 739,015
Landside Commercial 3,842,896 3,830,488 12,408 3,861,853 (31,365)
Other 1,960,755 1,790,033 170,722 1,752,563 37,470
Total Operating Revenues 21,536,567 21,542,019 (5,452) 20,719,348 822,671
Other Income
Investment Income 2,375,506 1,819,501 556,005 1,077,834 741,667
Passenger Facility Charges 2,833,167 2,755,309 77,858 2,836,904 (81,595)
Customer Facility Charges 996,495 945,662 50,833 991,420 (45,758)
Operating Grant 166,581 168,487 (1,906) 156,702 11,785
Capital Grants V 8,411,479 32,826,799  (24,415,320) 5,648,001 27,178,708
Capital Contributions 1,726,530 2,554 454 {827,924) - 2,554,454
Total Other Income 16,509,758 41,070,212 (24 560,454) 10,710,951 30,359,261

TOTAL INCOME $ 38,046,325 $ 62,612,231 $(24,565,906) $ 31,430,299 $ 31,181,932
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Operating Revenues:

Significant items for 2007 as compated to 2006 wete as follows:

7 Total operating revenue decreased by $5,452. The decrease was ptimarily due to a $378,845
decline in aitline revenue. Comrercial airlines paid $181,353 and $107,851 less in gate usage
and remain over night fees in 2007 compared to 2006. In response to rising fuel costs,
passenger aitlines have turned to higher gate utilization at their leased gates to avoid additional
gate usage fees at City gates. In addition, fewer aircraft are prepositioned for morning
departures which reduce the number of overnight patking instances. Landing fees collected
were $187,053 lower than 2006 primarily due to a reduction in the number of cargo flight
‘operations.

> The decrease in airline revenue was partially offset by an increase of $115,044 in terminal
budlding concession revenues. The inctease was a result of higher sales experienced by most of
the terminal passenger concession outlets. The first full year of sales for the Airport’s new food
and beverage and retail sales concessions were contributing factors. Passenger response to the
new concession facilities has been overwhelmingly positive.

= Othet revenues increased by $170,722 primasly due to an increase in both ground rent and
miscellaneous revenues collected from tenants. A substantial portion of the increase was due to
reimbursements from tenants related to tenant finishes for leased space.
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Significant items for 2006 as compared to 2005 wete as follows:

Aarline Revenue decreased by appxoxilnateiy $63,994 from 2005. Landing fees decreased by
$519,513 due to a teduction in the number of landings, offset by an increase in non-preferential
gate usage fees of $255306. Terminal rents decreased slightly in 2006 by $34,393 due to a

slightly higher vacancy rate.

Parking revenues increased by approximately $739,015 due to increased utilization as a result of
the completion of the patking lot construction project which relocated the rental car and short
term parking lots. In addition, both the long term and valet parking fees were increased in

‘February of 2006. Terminal building revenues increased due to higher spending per passenger in

the food and gift concessions as a result of the new and improved concession outlets in the main
terminal.

Other Income:

The significant items for 2007 as compared to 2006 are as follows:

b

B S

Investment income increased by approximately $556,005 from 2006, due to higher interest rates
earned on the Airport’s bond reserve funds and other pooled investments. -

Capital grants revenue decteased by $24,41 5,320 in 2007 as compared to 2006. 'This decrease is

 the result of approximately $32 million in grants that was received from the FAA in 2006 for the

Airpott’s demolition and rehabilitation of its 13,500 foot runway.

Capital contributions decreased by $827,924 in 2007 as compared to 2006. In 2006, the Airport
began construction on infrastructure improvements telated to the Airport Business Park. The
Airport was reimbursed by the first two tenants in the park. The majority of the improvements
and related refmbursements were received in 2006.
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The significant items for 2006 as compared to 2005 are as follows:

»

>

Investment income incteased by approximately $741,667 from 2005, due to higher interest rates
earned on the Airport’s bond reserve funds and other pooled investments.

Capital grants revenue increased in 2006 by $27,178,708 compared to 2005. This increase is the
result of approximately $36 million in grants from the FAA for the Airport’s demolition and
rehabilitation of runway 171./35R.

The Airport received $2,554,454 in capital contributions for infrastructure improvement
reimbursements and cost recovery related to several land parcels.

Expense Overview:

The following schedule presents 2 summary of all expenses for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006, along with comparisons in dollars to the prior years.

Year End Year End $ Increase/ Year End $ Increase
12/31/2007 12/31/2006 (Dectease) 12/31/2005 (Decrease)

Operating Expenses

Salaries and Benefits $ 7,762,583 $ 7477470 § 285,113 $ 7,088325 $§ 389,145
Other Operating Expenses 6,959,709 6,327,062 632,647 6,128,459 198,603
Total Operating Expenses 14,722,292 13,804,532 917,760 13,216,784 587,748
Depreciation and gain or loss

on disposal of capital assets 8,554,308 28,408,409  (19,854,101) 8,147,552 20,260,857
Interest Expense 2,625,880 3,100,210 (474,330) 3,244,482 (144,272)
TOTAL EXPENSES $25,902,480  $45313,151 $(19410,671) $24,608,818  $20,704,333

The significant issues affecting 2007 expenses as compared to 2006 were as follows:

¥ Other operating expenses were approximately $632,647 higher in 2007 compared to 2006.

Additional details of operating expenses and explanations of variances are provided below under
Expense by Category.

Depreciation expense and gain or loss on disposal of capital assets was $19,854,101 lower than
2006 due to a higher loss on the disposal of assets in 2006 including the demolition of the
Aurport’s 13,500 foot runway.

Interest expense for 2007 was approximately $474,300 lower than 2006 primarily due to a
refunding of the Airport’s 1996 Series A and B revenue bonds in Aprl 2007 resulting in lower
annual debt setvice payments. In addition, the Airport’s debt amortization schedule applies a
greater portion of the substantially level debt service payments toward principal and less toward
interest each year on the remaining outstanding bonds.

The significant issues affecting 2006 expenses as compared to 2005 were as follows:

= Operating expenses were approximately $587,748 higher in 2006 compared to 2005. Additional
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details of operating expenses and explanations of variances are provided below under Expense
by Category.

> Depreciation expense and gain or loss on disposal of capital assets was $20,260,857 higher than
2005 due to the disposal of assets including the demolition of runway 17L/35R ptiot to
reconstruction and an increase in depreciation due to additions in assets.
> Interest expense for 2006 was approximately $144,272 lower than 2005 due to the Airport’s debt
amottization schedule applying a greater portion of the substantially level debt service payments
toward principal and less toward 1nterest each year.
Expense by Category:
The following chart shows the operating expenses by category for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006.
2007 2007 2006 $ Increase/ 2006
Totals % of Total Totals {Decrease) % of Total
Salaries and Benefits $ 7,762,583 52.73% § 7477470 $ 285,113 54.17%
Supplies 656,385 4.46% 507,543 148,842 3.67%
Repairs and Maintenance 1,209,781 8.22% 906,812 302,969 6.57%
Advertising 94,547 0.64% 79,618 14,929 0.58%
Utilities 1,019,219 6.92% 1,096,817 (77,598) 7.95%
Contract Services 273,578 1.86% 424,014 (150,436) 3.07%
Parking Management 1,478,790 10.04% 1,523,210 (44,420) 11.03%
Miscellaneous 1,142,086 7.76% 1,329,283 (187,197) 9.63%
Capital Expenditures 1,085,323 7.37% 459,765 625,558 3.33%
TOTAL EXPENSES § 14,722,292 100.00% § 13804532 $ 917,760 100.00%

The significant vatiances between 2007 and 2006 expenses by category were the result of:

5

3

Salaries and benefits increased $285,113 in 2007 due to salary progressions and a City wide cost
of living increase.

Repairs and maintenance increased $302,969 primarily due to the reopening of Runway
171./35R, resulting in routine maintenance that was not required in 2006 while the runway was
under reconstruction. In addition, fleet maintenance expenses increased by §83,694 as a result
of higher maintenance needs caused by heavy winter storms.

Contract setvices decreased $150,436 from 2006 as the need for external professional services
was teduced. A significant factor was the completion of the Airport’s new perimeter security
system allowing for the change from manned to automated security gates.

Miscellaneous expenses decreased by $187,197 in 2007, primarly due to a decrease in the

administrative fees paid to the City for centralized services. Several City services were converted
to 2 direct billing format and are included in other expenditure categories for 2007.
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Capital expenditutes were $625,558 higher than 2006 due to the capitalization of a smaller
portion of assets as compared to 2006.

The significant variances between 2006 and 2005 expenses by category wete the result of:

-

-

-

Salaries and benefits increased $389,145 in 2006 due to salary progtessions and a City wide cost
of living increase.

Supplies decreased $179,634 from 2005, due primarily to lower inventory requirements.

Repairs and maintenance decreased $329,489 due to the closure of Runway 171./35R, resulting
in reduced repair and maintenance requirements on the airfield.

Contract setvices decreased by $103,597 in 2006 due to fewer tequirements for legal and
financial setvices.

Miscellaneous expenditutes were $186,821 higher than in 2005 due to an increase in the
Airpott’s allocation of the City’s shared administrative costs for financial, legal, and other
services. : ‘

Capital expenditutes increased $334,185, primarily due to the replacement of several
maintenance vehicles.

Operating Expenses by Category
2007

fisupplies
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1 Repairs and
Maintanence
8%

' Adve rtist
B Salazies and ’ “;%mg
Benefits
3 B Udlities

il Contract Services
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Budgetary Highlights

2007 2007 % Over/ 2006 2006 % Over/
Budget Actual (Under) Budget Actual (Unden)

Operating Revenues
Aitline Revenues $ 8,926,780 § 7,797.852 -12.65% $ 8,655,929 § 8,176,697 -5.54%

Othet Operating Revenues  14,337975 13,738,718 -4.18% 13416917 13,365,322 -0.38%
Total Operating Revenues 23,264,755 21,536,570 -7.43% 22,072,846 21,542,019 -2.40%

Total Operating Expenses 15130219 14722292 -2.70% 14,664,779 13,804,532 -5.87%
Total Operating Income  § 8,134,536 § 6,814,278 -16.23% § 7,408,067 $§ 7,737,487  4.45%

The significant variances related to 2007 budget and actual figures were as follows:

7 Aitline tevenues were approximately 12.65% less than budgeted. The Airport expetienced fewer
landings than originally anticipated at the time the 2007 budget was prepared, and the actual
landing fee charged was lower than fotecasted in the budget. The latgest contributor to fewet
landings and lower landed weight was a reduction in the number of cargo operations in 2007 as
compared to 2006.

e Opetating expenses were 2.7% lower than otiginally budgeted due to personnel vacancies and
reduced expenditures for contracted and centralized services.

The signiﬁcant variances related to 2006 budget and actual figures were as follows:

= Airline revenues wete approximately 5.54% less than budgeted. The Airport experienced fewer
landings than originally anticipated at the time the 2006 budget was prepared. Consolidation of
routes within the aitline industry and the closure of the Airport’s east runway contributed to the
reduced number of landings. The decrease in landing fees was partially offset by an increase in
non-preferential gate usage fees.

F Operating expenses were 5.87% lower than originally budgeted due to personnel vacancies and
lower than anticipated repair and maintenance expenses associated with the airfield. The closure
of Runway 17L/35R created a reduced demand for runway repairs.

Long-Term Debt

The Airport had §54,735,426 and $57,219,851 in bonds outstanding in six senes of bonds; 2007A,
20078, 20024, 1996A, 19968 and 1992C as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
Airport refunded the 1996A and 19968 senies bonds in April 2007 with the 2007A and 2007B senes

bonds. The bonds are payable solely from net revenues of the Airport system and from certain
funds established under the bond ordinance.

Additional information regarding the Adrport's cutstanding bonds can be found in Note C(3) of the
accompanying notes.
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In May of 2006, the Airport signed a loan agreement with U.S. Bank to fund infrastructure
improvements to a parcel of land in the Airport Business Patk. Loan payments will be funded
through a surcharge that will be collected from the tenant per the terms of a lease negotiated in June
of 2006. On December 31 2007 and 2006, the outstanding balance on the loan was $2,177,442 and
$1,283,530 respectively.

In December of 2007, the Airport entered into a loan agreement with the Colorado Department of
Transportation to fund improvements to the public roadway system and related signage. On
December 31, 2007, the outstanding balance on the loan was $3,500,000. The loan will be repaid
with PFC revenues.

The Auport currently has public bond ratings from the thtce major rating agencies. Cutrently the
rates are as follows: ‘

Fitch ' Moody’s S&P
Aitport Revenue Bonds A- | Stable A3 | Stable A- | Stable

Capital Acquisition and Construction Activities

During fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Airport expended approximately $18
million and $51 million in capital activities, respectively. Major construction projects in 2007
included security modifications, drainage improvements, the rental car and public parking relocation,
infrastructure improvements along the west side (Aviation Way) of the Airport, the rehabilitation of
Runway 171./35R, and infrastructute improvements for the Airport Business Patk. Property and
equipment acquisitions are capitalized at cost if over $5,000.

Major capital projects for the years ended December 31 incladed: .

" Taxiway C Extension ' $ - $ 172,333
Rehabilitation of Taxiway E, G (Phase I 4,233,227 -
Taxiway H Extension - ‘ 6,953 8,746
Rental Car/ Public Parking/ Roadway Improvements 3,760,200 2,292 067
Resutface Airport Entry/Exit Roads ; 1,582,611 , 1,666
Vehicle Service Road 118,708 878,198
WAD - Roads : 39,964 578,616
Terminal Expansion Improvements 12,330 510,148
Business Park Development 1,666,187 2,780,467
Relocation of ETD Equipment ‘ - 126,383
Aviation Way Expansion B C 325471 2,393,640
GA Taxilane/Holding Bay - E 18,439
Secutity Modifications : , 936,765 341,263
Taxiway E Pavement Survey o : » - 282,892

~ Roadway Signage : ‘ 21,104 49,039 -
Runway 171/35R Rehabilitation S ' 2,443,637 32,832,086
WAD Taxilane , 4,745 53,457
Baggage Screening Camera System , . 29529 -
Rehab of Taxiway E (Design) — - 665,148 37
Airport Drainage Improvements 747,193 0 5,302,126
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Development Office Remodel - 2,654
ILS Glide Slope 103,853 -
Carpet Replacement - 438,315
Remodel Administrative Offices 9,337 -
Bag Belt Modifications 142,505 -
Vehicle Service Road (East Petimeter) 320,684 -
Runway Fog Seal 109,494 -
South GA Taxilane 403,685 466,439
- Miscellaneous other Airpott improvements 12,356 404,019
Total $ 17,695,686 $ 50,433,030

Acquisitions ate funded using a vatiety of financing techniques, including federal grants, passenger
facility chatges, customer facility chatges, issuance of airport system revenue bonds and the Airport's
capital fund.

Additional information regarding capital assets can be found in Note C(2).

Request for Information

~ This financial repott is designed to provide a general overview of the Airport's finances for all those
intetested. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional information should be addressed in writing to: Gisela Shanahan, Assistant Director of

Aviation - Finance & Administration, Colorado Springs Airport, 7770 Milton E. Proby Parkway,
Suite 50, Colotrado Springs, Colotado, 80916 or by email to gshanahan@springsgov.com.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted cash and investments $ 26,937,644
Restricted cash and investments 8,522,265
Accounts receivable 2,745,261
Due from other City funds -
Total current assets 38,205,170
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted assets
Investments 5,604,162
Unamottized bond issuance costs 852254
Note Receivable 2,138,585
Capital assets
Land 18,423,581
Buildings 93,383,200
Improvements other than buildings 86,235,567
Machinery and equipment 7,209,195
Infrastructure 16,795,306
Vehicles 3,927,794
Construction in progress 71,635,022
Less accumulated depreciation (70,938,076)

Total capital assets (net of accumulated

depreciation and amortization) 226,671,589

Total noncurrent assets 235,266,590

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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2006

$ 24,531,497

7,989,834
8,051,398
50

40,572,779

5,834,683
601,441

1,288,586

18,423,581
93,353,277
87,133,906

5,645,340
16,795,306

4,363,730
57,337,685

64,937,976

218,114,849

225,839,559

$273.471,760 $266.412,338



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of revenue bonds payable $ 3,068,236 $ 3,213,493
Cutrent portion of notes payable 477,037 596,817
Accrued interest payable 8,765 -
Accounts payable 3,337,685 10,204,676
Accrued salaries, benefits 606,931 612,454
Due to other City funds - 112,642
Deferred revenue and other tenant deposits 1,339,027 1,110,771
Total current liabilities 8,837,681 15,850,853
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
 Revenue bonds payable 50,695,243 53,328,643
Notes Payable 5,200,405 686,713
Accrued sick leave benefits 433,436 384,979
Total noncurrent liabilities 56,329,084 54,400,335
Total liabilities 65,166,765 70,251,188
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 176,326,065 166,123,866
Restricted net assets 14,126,427 13,824,516
Unrestricted net assets 17,852,503 16,212,768
Total net assets 208,304,995 196,161,150
Total liabilities and net assets $273,471,760 $266,412,338

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
Year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
Operating revenues
Airline revenues $ 7,797,852 $ 8,176,697
Terminal building concessions 1,678,165 1,563,121
Parking concessions 6,256,899 6,181,680
Landside commercial concessions 3,842,896 3,830,488
Other chatges 1,960,755 1,790,033
Total operating revenues 21,536,567 21,542,019
Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits 7,762,583 7,477,470
Other operating expenses 6,959,709 6,327,062
Depreciation 7,152,731 8,552,544
Total operating expenses 21,875,023 22,357,076
Operating income (loss) (338,456) (815,057)
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Investment income 2,375,506 1,819,501
Passenger facility charges 2,833,167 2,755,309
Customer facility charges 996,495 945,662
Operating grants 166,581 168,487
Interest expense (2,625,880) (3,100,210)
Gain/loss on disposal of capital assets (1,401,577) (19,855,865)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,344,292 (17,267.116)
Income before contributions 2,005,836 (18,082,173)
Capital grants 8,411,479 32,826,799
Capital contributions 1,726,530 2,554,454
Change 1n net assets 12,143,845 17,299,080
Total net assets — beginning of year 196,161,150 178,862,070
Total net assets — end of year $208,304,995 $196,161,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Receipts from interfund setvices provided

Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Operating grant

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Capital grant

Capital expenditures

Passenger facility charges

Customer facility charges

Loan proceeds

Principal payments on loans

Interest payments on loans

Principal payments on revenue bonds

Interest payments on revenue bonds

Payment from accounts payable incurred for

fixed asset additions

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing
activities :

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received on investments
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents — end of year
Investments
Cash and investments
Reconciliation of cash and investments to the balance sheet
Unrestricted cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Total cash and investments
(continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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2007

$ 21,853,280
31,536

(5,383,966)
(7,719,649)
(1,668,906)

7,112,295

156,627

13,496,146
(13,603,086)
2,784,916
996,495
5,092,402
(698,489)
(126,977)
(3,198,333)
(2,450,078)

6,886,471

9,179,467

1,739,132
(21,851,238)
4193295

15,918,811

529,578
1,549,640
2,079,218

38984853
$ 41,064,071

$ 26,937,644
14,126,427
$ 41,064,071

2006

$ 21,569,500
45377

(3,435,644)
(7,329,855)
(2,652,948)

8,196,430

150,000

26,770,403
(21,937,174)
2,763,025
945,662
1,307,644
(24,116)
(14,001)
(3,230,000)
(2,604,683)

(5,209,967)
(1,233,207)

1,483,774
(17,396,409)
11,420,878

(4,491,757)

1,351,939
197,701
1,549,640
36,806,374

$ 38356014

$ 24,531,497
13,824,517
§ 38.356.014



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
Year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (338,456) $ (815,057)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation 7,152,731 8,552,544
(Increase) decrease in assets
Receivables 119,942 101,062
Due from other City funds 50 13,864
Increase (dectease) in liabilities
Accounts payable 19,480 234,895
Accrued salaries, benefits, and sick leave benefits 42934 147,616
Due to other City funds (112,642) 3,575
Deferred revenue and other tenant deposits 228,256 (42,069)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 7112295 $ 8196430

Noncash capital and related financing and investing activities:

The Airport had unrealized losses on investments of $332,504 and $303,869 for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Airport obtained fixed assets through incurring
payables in the amount of $2,214,328 and $9,100,795 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Financial reporting entity

The City of Colorado Springs owns and operates the Colorado Springs Municipal Airport, which
provides ait transportation setvices for Colorado Springs, El Paso County, and surrounding
communities. The Aitport is located in the southeastern part of the City of Colorado Springs,
Colorado.

The City, as lessor, has entered into lease agreements with various aitlines, rental car companies,
terminal concession operators, genetal aviation setvice providers, and business park tenants.
The agreements cover not only the lease of airport building space and land to the lessees, but
also the lessees’ payment of fees to the Airport based on the lessees’ revenues. In addition, the
City is a party to a parking management contract in which the City receives all revenues from its
public parking facility and pays operating expenses and a management fee to the operator.
Substantially all Airport revenue is generated from these agreements.

The Colorado Springs Municipal Aitport (Airport) is an enterprise fund of the City of Colorado
Springs, Colorado. These financial statements present only the financial position of the
Colorado Springs Municipal Airport. These financial statements do not purportt to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the City of Colorado Springs, Colorado, and the changes
in its financial position and its cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

A Ditector of Aviation ditects and manages the Airport. This Director reports to the City
Manager, who is appointed by the City Council. Major policy decisions ate subject to the
approval of the City Council.

2. Measnrement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

Airport funds ate accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting and the flow of economic
resources measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a hability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The Airpott applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements as well as all Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements
(including those issued after November 30, 1989) unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements, in accounting and reporting for its operations.

The Aitport distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
tevenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and dehivering
goods in connection with the Aitport’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Airport are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
2. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation - continued

expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
Airportt’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

3. _Assets, liabilities and net assets

A. Deposits and investments

The Airport’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
repurchase agreements and amounts in the pooled cash and investment accounts of the City of
Colorado Springs.

Investments are stated at fair value determined by quoted market prices.

The Aitport adopted GASB No. 40; Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2004, and will comply with the provisions prospectively. GASB Statement
No. 40 was issued in order to modify custodial credit risk disclosures and to establish more
comptehensive disclosute requirements addressing other common risks of the deposits and
investments of state and local governments. Disclosures required by GASB Statement No. 40
are located in Note C.1. Adoption of GASB Statement No. 40 had no effect on beginning net
assets or change in net assets.

B. Capital assets and depreciation

Capital assets ate carried at cost. The Aitport capitalizes acquired property that is of a tangible
nature, has an estimated useful life of three years or more, and has a value of at least $5,000.

Depreciation of capital assets for the Airport is provided for using the straight-line method
based on the estimated setvice lives of the assets, which ate as follows:

Buildings 40 — 45 years
Improvements other than buildings 25 — 30 years
Machinety and equipment 5 — 15 years
Infrastructure 40 — 50 years
Vebhicles 5 — 15 years

Interest is capitalized on fixed assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The amount of interest
capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing
until completion of the project with interest eatned on invested proceeds over the same period.

Maintenance, repairs and renewals, which neither materially add to the value of the property nor
appteciably prolong its life, are charged to expenses as incurred.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

3. _Assels, liabilities and net assets - continued

C. Compensated absences

The Airport’s employees earn vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. The amount of
accumulated, unpaid vacation and sick leave benefits at year-end is accrued and shown on the
balance sheet.

D. Restricted net assets

In accordance with applicable bond ordinance provisions and federal regulations, certain cash
and investments are restricted and have been included in the accompanying balance sheets as
restricted cash and investments. Additionally, the bond ordinance and federal regulations also
requite restriction of net assets for specific purposes, including operating expense reserves, debt
service reserves and approved capital improvement projects. Net asset amounts required to be
restricted are shown in the accompanying balance sheets as restricted net assets.

E. Passenger facility charges

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has approved previously filed applications of the
Airport for the right to impose passenger facility charges (PFCs) on enplaned passengers at the
Airport. PFC revenue is required to be used to fund FAA approved capital projects eligible
under federal legislation permitting the imposition of PFCs. The approved Airport projects
include certain completed and ongoing projects such as runway and taxiway rehabilitations,
secutity enhancements, roadway upgrades and drainage improvements. GASB 34 requires PFCs
be recognized when eatned, not when received. Unspent PFC revenue is recorded in the
financial statements as restricted cash and restricted net assets.

F. Customer facility charges

In 1994, the City of Colorado Sptings issued $6,093,000 aggregate principal amount of its
Special Facility Bonds to finance the construction of service and storage facilities for rental car
companies located on the Airport. The customer facility charge (CFC) was originally established
to pay the debt service and expired on September 1, 2004. When the bonds were retired, there
was an excess held by the bond trustee of $3,576,541. Per the bond documents, these funds
were returned to the Airport where $250,000 was set aside as reserved funds as required under
the rental car concession agreement and the remaining was recorded as CFC revenue on the
financial statements.

An ordinance (04-32) was approved by the City Council on March 23, 2004, allowing the
Aitport to continue to collect the CFCs for the purpose of funding rental car improvement
projects. The collection rate of $1.50 per rental car contract date has remained in effect since
the adoption of the ordinance. The rate cannot exceed $2.50 per rental car contract day without
City Council approval.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
3. Assets, liabilities and net assets - continued
G. Unamortized bond issue costs

Unamortized bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the bond issue on the effective
interest method.

NOTE B — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
1. Budgetary information

In accordance with City Charter, the Airport is required to submit a balanced budget to City
Council on or before the third Monday of November of each year. The budget is reviewed and
modified as appropriate and an approptiation ordinance is prepared to adopt the budget no later
than December 31 of each year. Annual appropriations lapse at year-end. The budget of the
Airport is prepared on a modified accrual, non-GAAP, basis of accounting.

Because accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis
differ significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with
accounting ptinciples genetally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP), a
teconciliation of tesultant basis, timing and perspective for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2000, 1s presented below:

2007 2006

Operating expenses (US GAAP basis) $ 21,875,023 $ 22,357,076
Non-operating expenses (US GAAP basis) 4,027,457 22.956,075

25,902,480 45,313,151
Less: Depreciation expense (7,152,731) (8,552,544)
Add: Capital expenditures (accrual basis) 18,218,648 50,417,281
Expenditures (budgetary basis) $ 36,968,397 $ 87,177,888
Approprations $ 54,036,651 $ 95.166,352

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES

1. Deposits and investments

The City of Colorado Springs pools the cash and investments of its funds, including the Airport.
The City’s pooled cash and investments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, amounted to

25



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES — Continued

1. Deposits and investments - continued

$163,246,837 and $161,820,946, respectively. The Airport’s allocated portion of pooled cash
and investments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, was $35,459,909 and $32,521,331
respectively. The Airport’s portion was approximately 22% and 20% of the total pooled cash
and investments of the City as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The pooled cash and
investments of the City and the Airpott as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
City Airport City Airport
Cash on hand $ 14,342  $ 3114  § 14,542 % 2,923
Deposits
Demand, time deposits 9.555.590 2076104 7,696,705 1,546,717
9,569,932 2,079,218 7,711,247 1,549,640
Investments 153,676,905 33.380,691 154,109.699 30,971,691
Total pooled cash and
investments $ 163246837 $ 35459909 $ 161.820946 § 32,521,331

Restricted investments

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Airpott’s restricted investments are comptised of the
reputchase agreements of $5,604,163 and $5,834,683 respectively.

Deposits

The Colotado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requites that financial institutions pledge a
single institution pool of collateral against all the uninsuted public deposits it holds, and the
market value of the securities in the pool is required to be in excess of one hundred two percent
of the financial institution’s total uninsured public deposits.

As of December 31, 2007, the bank balance of the City of Colorado Springs’ bank deposits
exclusive of cash not included in pooled cash and investments was $12,512,092. Of the total
bank deposits, $169,400 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and the remainder of
$12,342,692 was uninsured but collateralized in accordance with Colotado state law. The
Airpott’s shate of those amounts as of December 31, 2007, was $28,150 and $2,051,069,
trespectively.

The City of Colorado Springs and the Airport’s investments are subject to interest rate, credit
risk and concentration of credit risk. The City has adopted an Investment Policy requiring all
investments be made in accordance with Colorado revised statutes. As a means of limiting its
exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest, the City’s investment policy limits
investment maturities to five years. As of December 31, 2007, the detail of pooled cash and
investments held for the City and the Airpott is as follows:
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES — Continued

1. Deposits and investments — continued

Investments - continued

Fair Value Fair Value

Investment type City Airport
Money market mutual funds $ 692,387 $ 150,397
Repurchase agreements 12,974,042 2,818,136
Commercial Paper 5,181,077 1,125,400
US Treasury securities 10,286,293 2,234.321
US Instrumentality securities 113,751,358 24,708,324
Cotporate fixed-income securities 8,995,267 1,953,893
Mortgages pooled 1,796,481 390,220
Total fair value 153,676,905 33,380,691
Portfolio weighted average maturity
Reconciliation to Total Pooled Cash and Investments

Add: Cash on hand and in banks 9,569,932 2,079,218

$163,246,837 $  35.459909

Weighted Average

Maturity (vears)
0.00

0.00
0.04
2.44
2.71
1.42
0.37

2.26

As of December 31, 2006, the detail of pooled cash and investments held for the City and the

Airpott is as follows:

Fair Value Fair Value

Investment type City Airport
Money market mutual funds $ 556,562 $ 111,853
Repurchase agreements 12,012,849 2,414,243
US Treasury securities 28,460,926 5,719,841
US Instrumentality securities 106,456,810 21,394,808
Corporate fixed-income securities 4,223,434 848,791
Mottgages pooled 2,399,118 482,155
Total fair value 154,109,699 30,971,691
Portfolio weighted average maturity
Reconciliation to Total Pooled Cash
and Investments

Add: Cash on hand and in banks 7,711,247 1,549,640

$161,820,946 § 32521331
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Maturity (years)
0.00

0.00
0.89
1.76
1.22
2.36

1.95



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006
NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES - Continued
1. Deposits and investments — continned

Investments - continued

Credit Quality Distribution for Securities as a Percentage of Total Investments

S&P Rating % of Total

Money market mutual funds AAAm 0.45%
Repurchase agreements - 8.44%
Commertcial paper A 3.37%
US Treasury Securities N/A 6.70%
US Instrumentality Securities N/A 74.02%
Domestic corporate fixed income securities A 1.04%
Domestic corporate fixed income securities AA 3.50%
Dommestic corporate fixed income securities AAA 1.31%
Mortgage pooled AAA 1.17%
100.00%

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the City had entered into several repurchase agreements in
order to temporatily invest excess cash. Undetlying collateral for these agreements is composed of
direct obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies and market value of this collateral exceeds
100% of carrying value.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES - Continued

2. Capital assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2007, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
balance Increase Decrease balance
Capital assets being
depreciated:
Buildings $ 93,353,277 $ 29,923 - $ 93,383,200
Improvements other
than buildings 87,133,906 1,107,792 (2,006,131) 86,235,567
Machinery and
equipment 5,645,340 1,671,407 (107,552) 7,209,195
Vehicles 4,363,730 26,864 (462,800) 3,927,794
Infrastructure 16,795,306 - - 16,795,306
Total capital assets
Being depreciated 207,291,559 2,835,986 (2,576,483) 207,551,062
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings (27,105,475) (2,593,475) - (29,698,950)
Improvements other
than buildings (29,793,653) (3,526,019) 586,231 (32,733,441)
Machinery and
equipment (2,501,828) (462,690) 103,600 (2,860,918)
Vehicles (4,097,491) (91,210 462,800 (3,725,901)
Infrastructure (1,439,529) (479.337) - (1,.918,866)
Total accumulated
depreciation (64,937,976) (7,152,731) 1,152,631 (70,938,076)
Total capital assets
Being depreciated, net 142,353,583 (4,316,745) (1,423,852) 136,612,986
Capital assets not being
depreciated :
Land 18,423,581 - - 18,423,581
Construction in progress 57,337,685 15,732,998 (1,435,661) 71,635,022
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 75,761,266 15,732,998 (1,435,661) 90,058,603
Capital assets, net $218114849  $11416253  $ (2850513)  $226.671,589
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport

Colorado Springs, Colorado

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2007 and 2006

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2006, was as follows:

Capital assets being
depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other
than buildings
Machinery and
equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total capital assets
Being depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other
than buildings
Machinery and
equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets
Being depreciated, net

Capital assets not being
depreciated :
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, net

Beginning Ending

balance Increase Decrease balance
$ 88,460,646 $ 5,281,163 $ (388,5532) § 93,353,277
125,506,949 199,518 (38,572,561) 87,133,906
4,160,389 1,865,508 (380,557) 5,645,340
4.537,074 117,280 (290,624) 4,363,730
16,795,306 - - 16,795,306
239,460,364 7,463,469 (39.632 274) 207,291,559
(24,886,597) (2,505,068) 286,190 (27,105,475)
(43,541,196) (4,997,107) 18,744,650 (29,793,653)
(2,436,465) (410,043) 344 680 (2,501,828)
(4,227,125) (160,990) 290,624 (4,097,491)
(960,193) (479,336) - (1,439,529)
(76,051,576) (8,552.544) 19,666,144 (64,937.976)
163,408,788 (1,089.075) (19.966,130) 142353583
18,423,581 - - 18,423,581
14,482 496 48.742912 (5,887.723) 57,337,685
32,906,077 48.742.912 (5,887.723) 75,761,266
$196,314.865 $47,653.837  $(25.853,853) $218,114,849
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES - Continued
3. Revenue bonds payable

In April 2007, The City of Colorado Springs issued $3,725,000 and $8,500,000 of Refunding
Airpott System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A and 2007B, for a current refunding of $9,345,000
and $2,625,000 of 1996A and 1996B Airport System Revenue Bonds, respectively. The
refunding was undertaken to reduce annual future debt service payments. The reacquisition price
was above the net catrying amount of the old debt by $211,363. This amount is being netted
against the new debt and amottized over the new debt’s life, which is two years longer than the
life of the old debt. The Series 2007A bonds, of which $3,725,000 mature from 2007 to 2021,
have interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 4.50%. The Series 2007B bonds, of which $8,500,000
mature from 2007 to 2023, have interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%.

In December 2002, the City of Colotrado Springs issued $43,005,000 of Refunding Airport
System Revenue Bonds, Seties 2002A for a current refunding of $41,650,000 of 1992A Airport
System Revenue Bonds. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total future debt service
payments. The reacquisiion ptrice was above the net catrying amount of the old debt by
$1,049,331. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the old debt’s
life, which is equal to the life of the new debt. The Series 2002A Serial bonds, of which
$18,580,000 mature from 2005 to 2015, have interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.75%. Seties
2002A term bonds of $17,615,000 and $4,065,000 are due from 2016 to 2020 and 2021 to 2022,
respectively, and have interest rates of 4.75% and 5.00%, respectively.

In December 1996, the City of Colorado Springs issued $12,450,000 Airport System Revenue
Bonds, Series 1996A and $3,485,000 Airport System Revenue Bonds, Seties 1996B for the
purposes of paying a portion of the costs of capital improvements at the Colorado Springs
Municipal Aitport, funding capitalized interest and a reserve fund, and to pay certain costs of
issuance. The 1996A and the 1996B bonds were refunded during 2007 by the 2007A and 2007B
Airport Refunding Revenue Bonds outlined above

In October 1992, the City of Colorado Springs, Colorado issued $47,390,000 Airport System
Revenue Bonds, Seties 1992A, $9,000,000 Airport System Revenue Bonds, Series 1992B and
$6,582,687 Airpott System Revenue Bonds, Series 1992C for the purposes of paying a portion of
the costs of a new terminal building and other capital improvements at the Colorado Springs
Municipal Aitpott, funding capitalized interest and a teserve fund, and to pay certain costs of
issuance. The 1992A bonds were refunded during 2002 by the 2002A Airport Refunding
Revenue Bonds outlined above. The Seties 1992B bonds were redeemed during 1994.

As of December 31, 2006, Seties 1992C capital appreciation bonds of $6,019,851 ($2,069,948
otiginal ptincipal amount plus $4,225,478 of interest accreted through December 31, 2007)
matute from 2001 to 2010 and have approximate yields to maturity of 6.80% to 7.20%.

All bonds ate special obligations of the City payable solely from net revenues of the Airport
System and from certain funds established under the bond ordinance.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C — DETAILED NOTES - Continued

4. Note Payable/ Note Receivable

On May 16, 2006, the Airport entered into a loan agteement, not to exceed $3,047,514, with
U.S. Bank National Association to fund improvements to a parcel of land m the Airport’s
Business Park. The improvements consist of infrastructure development, including utility lines,
roads, and general grading in order to prepare the property for development. The loan is
collateralized by real property. The total amount outstanding as of December 31, 2007, is
$2,177,442. Loan payments through May 15, 2036, will be made with funds derived from a
surcharge, above and beyond the monthly land lease, that is collected from the tenant.

Related to the Note Payable is a Note Receivable that represents the tenant’s infrastructure
sutcharge payment discussed above. The ground lease for the land parcel has been structured
such that it contains two components. The first component will be the ground rent. The
second component of the lease will be a surcharge in the exact amount needed to repay the
comercial loan. This revenue stream will be used strictly to repay the loan, and will be kept
separate from the flow of funds associated with the Airline Use and Lease Agreement.

The following is an amottization schedule (including Principal and Interest) for a five year
petiod as of December 31, 2007:

Year ending
December 31 Draw Amount Payment Interest Principal
2007 1,592,402 825,466 126,977 698,489
2008 - 228,696 208,431 20,265
2009 - 228,696 206,004 22,692
2010 - 228,696 203970 24,726
2011 - 228,696 201,752 26,944
2012 - 228,696 199,921 28,775
Totals $ 1,592,402 $ 1,968,946 $ 1.147,055 $ 821891

On December 19, 2007, the Airport entered into a loan agtreement in the amount of $3,500,000
with the Colorado Department of Transportation to fund improvements to public roadway
signage and to resutface the entry/exit roads to the Airport. Debt service payments on this loan
will be made from PFC revenues.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES — Continued

4. Note Payable/ Note Receivable- continued

The following is an amortization schedule (including Principal and Interest) for a five year
petiod as of December 31, 2007:

Year ending
December 31 Draw Amount Payment Interest Principal
2007 3,500,000 - - -
2008 - 561,772 105,000 456,772
2009 - 561,772 91,297 470,475
2010 - 561,772 77,182 484,590
2011 - 561,772 62,645 499.127
2012 - 561,772 47,671 514,101
Totals 3 3,500,000 $ 2,808,860 $ 383795 $ 2,425,065
5. Leases

The Aitport leases faciliies and land to various airlines, concessionaires, and others.
Substantially all of the leases are operating leases for land, buildings, and terminal space, most of
which expired and were reissued during 2004. The leases contain provisions for cancellation by
either party if certain conditions are met. The following is a schedule, by year, of minimum
future rentals of the operating leases for a ten yeat period as of December 31, 2007:

Year ending

December 31
2008 $ 12,432,288
2009 12,502,588
2010 1,779,536
2011 1,679,798
2012 1,490,230
2013-2017 4,506,588

$ 34,391,008

Minimum future rentals do not include contingent rentals, which may be received under certain
leases on the basis of revenue, fuel flow, or number of uses. Contingent rentals amounted to
$677,651 and $497,541 for the yeats ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES — Continued

5. Leases- continued

The following is an analysis of the Airport’s investment in property on opetating leases and
property held for lease by major classes as of the dates indicated:

TLand
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings

Infrastructute

Less accumulated depreciation

December 31,
2007

$ 18,423,581
93,383,200
86,235,567
16,795,306

214,837,654

(64,351,257)
150,486,397

December 31,
2006

$ 18,423,581
93,353,277
87,133,906
16,795,306

215,706,070

(58,338,657)
157,367,41

Additionally, the Um';ed States Air Force leases property from the City pursuant to a ninety-nine
year lease and in turn Peterson Air Force Base furnishes all aircraft rescue and fire fighting
services at the Airport as annual contributions (in-kind services) in lieu of payment of landing

fees under the lease.

6. Changes in long-term liabilities

Long-term habilities activity for the year ended December 31, 2007, was as follows:

Revenue bonds

Deferred amounts

on refundings

Bond Discount
Total bonds payable
Note payable
Compensated absences-
accrued sick leave benefits

Long-term liabilities
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Balance Due
Balance December 31, within
January 1, 2007 Additions Reductions 2007 one year

$57,219.851 $ 12,500,575  § (14,985,000) $54,735,426 $ 3,170,226
(677,715) (220, 336) 73,111 (824,940) (87,208)
- (147,007) - (147.007) (14,762)
56,542,136 12,133,232 (14,911,889) 53,763,479 $ 3,068,256
1,283,530 5,092,402 (698,490) 5,677,442 477,037
384,979 48 457 - 433 436 -
$58,210,645 $ 17274091 § (156103790 $59,874,357 $ 3,545293



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE C — DETAILED NOTES — Continued
6. Changes in long-term liabilities - continued

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended December 31, 2006, was as follows:

Balance Due

Balance December 31, within

January 1, 2006 Additions Reductions 2006 one year
Revenue bonds $60,100,697 $ 349,153 § (3,229,999) $57,219,851 $ 3,213,493

Deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums 7,099 - (710) 6,389 -

On refundings (762,365) - 78,261 (684.104) -
Total bonds payable 59,345,431 349,153 (3,152,448) 56,542,136 3,213,493
Note payable - 1,283,530 - 1,283,530 596,817

Compensated absences-

accrued sick leave benefits 353,157 31,822 - 384979 -

Long-term labilities $59.698588 § 1.664505 $ (3,152448) §$58,210,645 $ 3810310

7. Interfund receivables and payables

No interfund receivables or payables existed at December 31, 2007.

NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION

1. Risk management

The City of Colotado Springs has established a risk management division to coordinate and
administer wotkers’ compensation, property and general liability insurance programs for all its
activities and operations. For workers’ compensation coverage, the City has purchased
commercial insurance to cover losses in excess of $750,000 per occurrence. The City pays losses
less than this amount through its Workers Compensation Self-Insurance Fund. The Airport is
included in the Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance program. For major property coverage,
the City has purchased commercial insurance policies with varying deductibles. All deductibles
related to these policies are paid from the budget of the individual departments so affected. The
Airport is included in the property coverage of the City. General liability coverage for the
Airport is purchased from commercial carriers for losses up to $200,000,000. No claims were

incurred in excess of the coverage for 2007, 2006 or 2005.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE D — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

2. Post-retirement health care and life insurance benefits
In accordance with the City of Colorado Springs’ Personnel Policy, the Airport offers a health
care plan, including life insurance benefits, to retirees with the Airport’s contribution determined
by City Council. Employees retiring prior to 1979 receive this health care plan benefit without
cost to the employee. Those retiting during or after 1979 and hired prior to August 1, 1988,

teceive a limited Airport contribution not to exceed $91.40 per month.

Benefits were provided as follows:

Year ended December 31
2007 2006
Retirees with full coverage 3 3
Retirees with partial coverage 24 24
27 27
Cost of retitement benefits $ 27,659 $ 28,736

Post-retitement health care and life insurance benefits are funded through current revenue
soutces appropriated and accounted for in the City’s annual budget.

3. Retirement plans
A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description: The City contributes to the Local Government Division Trust Fund
(LGDTF), a cost shating multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
Public Employees’ Retitement Association of Colorado (PERA). Prior to January 1, 2006, the
LGDTF was known as the Municipal Division Trust Fund (MDTF). LGDTF provides
retirement and disability, annual increases, and death benefits for members or their beneficiaries.
All permanent employees, except uniformed police and fire, of the City are members of the
LGDTF. Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS), as amended, assigns the
authority to establish benefit provisions to the State Legislature. PERA issues a publicly
available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for LGDTF (ptior to January 1, 2006 this fund was known as MDTF). That report
may be obtained online at www.copera.org or by writing to Colorado PERA, 1300 Logan Street,
Denver, Colorado 80203 or by calling PERA at 303-832-9550 or 1-800-759-PERA (7372).
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE D — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

3. Retirement plans — continued

Funding Policy: Plan members and the City are required to contribute to the LGDTF at a rate
set by statute. The conttibution requirements of the plan members and the City are established
under Title 24, Article 51, Part 4 of the CRS, as amended. The contribution rate for membets is
8% and for the City it is 11.0% of covered salary. A portion of the City’s contribution (1.02% of
covered salaty) is allocated for the Health Care Trust Fund (see note D.3.B Post-employment
Healthcare Benefits). Beginning July 1, 2005, if the City rehired a PERA retiree as an employee
ot under any other wotk arrangement, it was required to report and pay employer contributions
on the amounts paid for the retiree, however no member contributions are required. Beginning
January 1, 2006, the City was required to pay an amortization equalization disbursement equal to
0.5 % of the total payroll. The Airport’s contributions to MDTF for the years ended December
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were $512,147, $473,929 and $430,887, respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.

B. Post-employment Healthcare Benefits

Plan Description: The City contributes to the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-shating
multiple-employer post-employment healthcare plan administered by PERA. The HCTF
provides a health care premium subsidy to PERA participating benefit recipients and their
eligible beneficiaries. Title 24, Article 51, Part 12 of the CRS, as amended, assigns the authority
to establish the HCTF benefit provisions to the State Legislature. PERA issues a publicly
available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the HCTF. That report may be obtained online at www.copera.otg or by
writing to PERA of Colorado, 1300 Logan Street, Denver, Colotado 80203 or by calling PERA
at 303-832-9550 or 1-800-759-PERA (7372).

Funding Policy: The City is required to contribute at a rate of 1.02% of covered salary for all
PERA members as set by statute. No member contributions are required. The contribution
requitements for the City are established under Title 24, Article 51, Part 4 of the CRS, as
amended. The apportionment of the contribution to the HCTF is established under Title 24,
Atrticle 51, Section 208 of the CRS, as amended. The Airport’s contributions to HCTF for the
years ending December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, wete $5,224, $4,834, and $4,395 respectively,
equal to their required contributions for each year.

C. Defined Contribution Plan

Plan Description: The LGDTF members of the City may voluntarily contribute to the Voluntary
Investment Program (401(k) Plan), an Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) defined
conttibution plan administered by PERA. Plan participation 1s voluntary, and contributions are
separate from others made to PERA. Title 24, Article 51, Part 14 of the CRS, as amended,
assigns the authority to establish the 401(k) Plan provisions to the State Legislature Funding
Policy.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE D — OTHER INFORMATION — Continued
3. Retirement plans — continued

The 401(k) Plan is funded by voluntary member contributions of up to a maximum limit set by
the IRS ($15,500 in 2007 and $15,000 in the 2006 calendar year). There is a catch-up provision
that allows participants age 50 and older who are contributing the maximum to contribute an
additional $5,000 annually to theit account. The 401(k) Plan member contributions from the
Airpott for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were $102,973, $111,444 and
$111,548, respectively.

All fire and police officers of the City participate in one of six agent, multiple employer, defined
benefit pension plans, depending upon their status as a police or fire officer and their hire date
(Old Hire/Alternate/Statewide). The Alternate Fire and Alternate Police plans were merged
into the FPPA Defined Benefit System known as the Colorado Springs New Hire Pension Plan
(CSNHPP) on October 1, 2006. As a function of the merger, FPPA is the plan administrator
for the CSNHPP. FPPA Board of Directots shall function as the trustee and pension board
for CSNHPP and shall administer the benefits under the CSNHPP plan as well as the Statewide
plan. The Old Hire plans will continue to be administered jointly by the City and FPPA. The
plans are included as pension trust funds. FPPA issues a publicly available annual financial
repott that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report
can be obtained by writing to: Fire and Police Pension Association, Two DTC, 5290 DTC
Parkway, Suite 100, Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111-2721 or by calling FPPA at 303-770-
3772.

4. Disclosures about fair value of financial instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value.

Restricted assets — investments and cash and investments

The cartying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of most of these
instruments. The fair values of some investments are estimated based on quoted market prices
for those or similar investments.

Revenue bonds payable

The fair value of the Aitport’s revenue bonds payable is estimated based on the quoted market
ptices of the debt in secondary bond markets.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE D — OTHER INFORMATION — Continued
4. Disclosures about fair value of financial instruments - continued

The estimated fair values of the Airport’s financial instruments are as follows as of
December 31, 2007, and 2006:

December 31, 2007

Carrying
amount Fair value
Restricted assets — investments $ 5,604,162 $ 5,604,162
Cash and investments 35,459,909 35,459,909
Revenue bonds payable 53,763,479 59,639,527
December 31, 2006
Carrying
amount Fair value
Restricted assets — investments $ 5,834,683 $ 5,834,683
Cash and investments 32,521,331 32,521,331
Revenue bonds payable 56,542,136 62,577,385

5. Compliance with OMB Circular A-133

The Colorado Springs Airport receives funding from the Federal Aviation Administration and the

City of Colorado Springs administers these grants. As such, these grants have been audited in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 at the City level.
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport

Colorado Springs Colorado

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY PER THE
BOND ORDINANCE FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS
Year ending December 31, 2007

Beginning balance

as of January 1, 2007
Add: Commitments as of

December 31, 2006
Adjusted balance

as of January 1, 2007

Calendar year 2007 activity
Operating Revenues
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest Earnings
Passenger facility charges
Customer facility charges
Other revenue (expense)
Operating Grants
Operating Transfers In
State Grant Capital Revenues
FAA Grant Revenues
Capital Reimbursements
Loan Proceeds

Increase in O& M Reserve

Sub-total revenues

Operating Expenses
Operating Transfers Out
Operating Capital
Capital Expenses
Non-Operating Expenses
Debt Service Expenses
Post refunding Reserve Reduction

Sub-total expenses

Balance before encumbrances, commitments,
and transfers

Encumbrances at December 31, 2007

Other commitments at December 31, 2007

Sub-total commitments

Transfers:

Operating/Maintenance
Bond Debt Service
2007 Bond Ordinance Requirements
Income Available for Sharing-City's Portion
Funding Adj.-Encumbrances/ Working Capital
Non-Preferential Gate Use Fee
Net (Rev)/Expense on Fountain Term Site
Net (Rev)/Expense on Business Park- Phase 1
Repayment of Loans to Capital Account
Interest to:

Airlines

Capital Account

Sub-total transfers

Ending Balance
December 31, 2007

Operations/ Bond Fund Bond O&M
Gross Maintenance Bond Interest Reserve Reserve
Revenue Fund Fund Account Account Account Fund
$1,222,064.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,834,682.00 $3,671,771.88
- 291,223.87 - - - -
1,222,064.75 291,223.87 - - 5,834,682.00 3,671,771.88
21,536,567.79
247,289.96 49,879.69 58,522.09 308,370.33 163,440.72
19,525.52
166,580.50
(110,783.14) 110,783.14
22,914,664.88 457,804.37 49,879.69 58,522.09 6,143,052.33 3,945,995.74
(13,628,917.36)
(13,077.00)
(522,966.65)
(2,101,895.33) (3,546,516.34)
(217,442.50)
- (14,151,884.01) (2,101,895.33) (3,546,516.34) (230,519.50) -
22,914,664.88 (13,694,079.64) (2,052,015.64) (3,487,994.25) 5,912,532.83 3,945,995.74
- (160,683.67) - - . _
(13,854,763.31) 13,854,763.31
(5,648,411.67) 2,101,895.33 3,546,516.34
(1,864,736.00)
(37,631.30)
(284,343.00)
(87,132.00)
(35,525.00)
(453,972.00)
612,659.23 - (49,879.69) (58,522.09) (308,370.33) (163,440.72)
(21,653,855.05) 13,854,763.31 2,052,015.64 3,487,994.25 (308,370.33) (163,440.72)
1,260,809.83 - - - 5,604,162.50 3,782,555.02

42



Capital Improvement Fund

Renewal & Prepaid Passenger Customer
Replacement Revenue Capital Fadility Fadility
Fund Account Account Account Account Totals
$750,000.00 $1,458,671.25 $9,445,649.45  $1,363,379.83 $796,389.82 $24,542,608.98
- - 5,322,805.20 2,018,707.46 1,816,936.69 9,449,673.22
750,000.00 1,458,671.25 14,768,454.65 3,382,087.29 2,613,326.51 33,992,282.20
21,536,567.79
32,446.40 63,104.85 650,996.19 76,140.90 88,941.02 1,739,132.15
2,833,167.33 2,833,167.33
- 996,495.00 996,495.00
- 19,525.52
8,411,479.02 8,411,479.02
1,726,530.32 1,726,530.32
3,120,973.00 3,120,973.00
782,446.40 1,521,776.10 28,678,433.18 6,291,395.52 3,698,762.53 74,376,152.33
(13,628,917.36)
(13,077.00)
(522,966.65)
(11,789,067.61)  (4,064,120.31)  (1,842,498.14) (17,695,686.06)
(5,648,411.67)
217,442.50 -
- - (11,571,625.11)  (4,064,120.31)  (1,842,498.14) (37,509,058.74)
782,446.40 1,521,776.10 17,106,808.07 2,227,275.21 1,856,264.39 36,867,093.59
- - (830,796.99) (230,785.58) (42,866.21) (1,265,132.45)
1,864,736.00 R
37,631.30 -
284,343.00 .
87,132.00 -
35,525.00 -
453,972.00
(32,446.40) 0.00
(63,104.85) 63,104.85 -
(32,446.40) (63,104.85) 2,826,444.15 - - 0.00
750,000.00 1,458,871.25 19,102,455.24 1,996,489.63 1,813,398.17 35,601,961.14
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport

Colorado Springs, Colorado

AIRLINES SERVING THE AIRPORT

Major and National

Allegiant Air
American Airlines
Continental Airlines
Delta Air Lines
Midwest Airlines
Northwest Aitlines
United Airlines
US Airways/America West

December 31, 2007
(unaudited)

Passenger Airlines

Regional and Commuter

Expressjet Aitlines ( Continental Express
and Expressjet)
Comait (Delta Connection)
Mesa Air Group (US Airways/America West
Express and United Express)
SkyWest Aitlines (Delta Connection, Midwest
Airlines, and United Express)
American Eagle Airlines (American Express)
Chautauqua Airlines (Continental Express)

All-Cargo Airlines

Airborne Express
FedEx
Key Lime Air

Soutrce: Colorado Springs Municipal Airport management records.

44



14

*sp30293 Juswadeurw 1odmry edprmyy sdurdg opesofon) :9omog

“y3odary ot 1e s3aFuassed pauerdus Jo axeys 193Few
15983%] ot P[PY SWR Y3 3 YIMYM L 661 dun[ UT odmny [PuOHEUINU] 2AUS(] 03 WOITY SY) WO qNY SIT PIAOW SHUTTY JPIEJ TIANSIA |

9% 99 %L°0" 61 16517 8PI‘L zoL01 %91 986°CC0°T  989°9C¢ 006°90L L00T
6 69 %1'9- ¥LS61 1eLT WL 665°01 %g'T- 9I0LIOT  6€6°18C  LLO'SEL 900¢
6¢ <9 %6"¢- £58°0¢ €Z8°T  098°L OLTTT % 0- €e8'0¢0’T  ¢TI'0IE 01L0CL 1174
S¢ 89 %T'S L0912 926’1 +0T'6 LLYOT %¢'T LPLPEOT  095°61€ L8TSTL ¥00¢
¥¢ 89 %L"9- 69502 €0T  bLYL 6S0°TT %¢°G- SHOTI0T  L8S9ST 960°6S . €002
1€ 89 %991 07T T L 19¢C1 %20 LST'890°T  +9+°122 £69°9¥8 200z
LT L %80 10681 1227 79¢°¢ 81¢°CT %L'TL- $S8'G90°T  S6¢°68 654°9.6 1002
0T I8 %1'S- 16L81 96Tl TLIC ¥yl %6'1- 99¢°02C°T 96949 0L9°6ST°T 0002
81 S %9'L 0SL61 2Tl 00LT 8C8°SI %6°G" 1287285 7 SR A Al 34 €66°C6T°T 6661
Sl <8 %0"CH- 05¢81 ¥¢8 96¢C 091°61 %G'GE- 6V6°02¢°T  6LEYE 0L598Z°1 8661
94 08 - 0€9°1¢ €8L LLT 0L9YC - 061°6¥0T  00S°6L 069°696T | L66T
SOUT[TE SoUTITE (oseaz0a(]) #1001 SOUIITY  SOUTTY sourpry | (aseaxoa(y) e0L SOUTITY SOUTITY TEIX
JPINWIod ﬁchﬂdﬁ OwduuuﬁH OMudU uOHSQHEOU _dGOﬂdZ 35e3I0UT uouﬂgou ﬁdGOﬂdZ

/Teuoiday  /I0kely 1UdI2g /TeuoiSoy /30fey WIDI2J /TeuoiSoy /30lely

arnyredop 1d (saayreda(] Jo "ON]) SUONEIIG() 1JLIdIY syoduassed pauepdug

s1aduassed pauerdug

(parpneun)

L00Z-L66T ‘1€ 12quuada(J papua s7eaf a1 10,
JIJIVYL ANI'TYIV TVOIIO.ISIH
opexo[o)) ‘s3undg operojo)
1odiry redpmunpy sdurdg operojon



9%
*sp302a1 tuawedewew wodiry redoronpy sduirdg opezojo) 130105
*100T &2y paddors pue ; o0z Avenue( vy ssazdxy [@uU2UNUOY) st 2MAISS pauws ¥nbneney)

400z Amf 2018398 paddoss pue UONSIUTO)) UEDUSTWY SE ¢ I9QUIIAON] T 21ATs redaq sourpry enbnwney) z1
*£00T T9QWIAAON] 9J1AII8 PAsEad PUE ¢opg un{ 2o1axas wedaq saupry ey weomawy [

'900z 1qu1dag ydnoaq 900z yoIey woy ssaadxy panu() se paresado SSUIETY SAIEIG SUEI], ‘6661 1990120 UI ID[ATIS ParIEds ssaIdxF 159 EIWIWY (]
*600Z 2un[ ydnonp popg 1snSny poumsas ARG H0(Z Arenue( vy UONIGUUOCY) ULIUIUTY st PAeIddo SIWETY SIFEIG STeI], |4 “podary a1 1e suonwado e pasead Apuanbasqns pue
6661 Edy v upede 2ojates medog “uonIUUO]) WR( SE §661 20RO 03 G661 32D WOy Hodire 3 PaAIdg uonoai03d £ordnrqueq 307 parg prenduea 7007 ‘0¢ A UO 1007 Toqueds( 2014395 payrms prendues 6
‘J3NIE) GORDAULO)) WP(T ® st Fulalas Amanoe s1uasa1das yumod 1aduassed pavedua s 359 S 74 ‘Apresedas s1omaed ssaxdxy payu) 103 Aanoe xaFusssed 1odoa you s30p parupn)
*£00Z W 3sudny pue ‘Am( oun{ 30§ 901A338 Papracig *s39m3ed ssaxdxy parup) st Furazas 159 ANS PUE “BSIP ISE0T) JVULRY ‘TISTOIST AL ITY SIPNPU We(
'900g W 3sn3ny pue ‘Am[ ‘oun[ ‘Areniqa,] ‘Arenue( 30 901A138 PIPLAOIg -ssaxdxy payu() se sayerado pue /(g Axenue( w183 ARG OF (010D AWANDE [[& PANIDJSULL) SIWPTY PavG() §
'S00T 39quue1dag 0LATIS PINIMUODSIP PUE GOOZ 2Un{ 2014198 TEFaq IPTUWJ/TWRTY IOMYUON 61 *TO0T T9qUWR03(] Uy SIVETY UEOHIWY [ika padow STy ppojy sues], [
‘8661 £3TN1qa 03 9661 I9quada(] woly 13odire 1 paasas ssaxduy Ty UreIEMOR 81 6661 1quardsg wr soupTy uewawy 4q pasmboe sem Iy 0usy 9
*000T IIQUISAON] 3ITAIIS PINULIUOISIP SITIPFTY BSIA At *100T A[ Ut 301AI9S PIYIES SOUNEIY ISSAPIN G
*100z [ady 2o1a39s pawms surpty Pfssadxy 91 200 w ssa3dxy [AU2UMEO)) 01 AIATOE [[e
€007 YOTEH JO ST IDLAIDS PISEI)) ‘[Q0T I9GOIDQ) UI IDIATIS PIITIS SUME[ 1EI10) 44 pue Zooz dy Sunaws ssardxy raustmuo)) 01 AKARSE §11 JO 150W PAIIIJSULI) [RUIURTUOD) 4
2007 mdy wt urede aotazas wedag 1007 39qw1das ydnonp Aepy -dnoxoy sy esapy 4q paresado ssardxy
301AI9S PAPLAOI] (0T APJy JO ST 3DIAIAS PISLI)) G661 IGO0 UT dLAISs Pausels ssazdxy rausunwor) b1 159\ BOWPWY 01 AHANDE [[e POLISJSULN) PUL H((T 39qudag T 931AI3s PINUNTODSIP 1594\ BIWIWY ¢
“UORO3UTOY) BIR(T S ZOOT I2qUISII(T WY IAIIS PIWMSII IFEWO) 00T ATeniqa,] Ul 331AJ3s PSUIEIS SOUIETY Wwedoy 7
-000Z T2dy JO SE IDLAISS PIsLad PUE UONIAUUOY) WR(J SE §66] TG00 UI IAISS PALIEIS FIEWIO)) €1 6661 TQUIAON] 43noIq) 661 dun[ WOy DAIAS Iy $SIVY |
%0'001 985°€E0°1 %0001 910°L10°T  %0°001 €€8°050°T  %0°001 LPLPE0'T %0001 SPOTIOT %0001 LST890°T  %0°001 LO9THSO'T %0001 LI6'91Z'T %0007 SPLVTT  %0°001 0SE0TE'T e1o],
%91 989°97€ %LLT 6£6°18C %1°0€ €TI'01E %6°0¢ 095°61€ %E'ST 185957 %L'0T POY1ZT %G8 S6€°68 %S 96959 %0y 12H'6r %9T 6LEYE
- - - - %9°0 1519 %S0 8ES'S - - - - - - - - - - - - (17) sourpry sapaig suer],
%S'L €6FLL %Ly 650°8% %S €0¥°95 %101 6°L0T %C 6 $56°¢€6 %8L 7T9'e8 %1 L88°T€E %11 780°€T %L'0 +E6 %L0 682°6 (07) 15948
- 1204 %20 $01'T %10 SHH1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (61)°PrIng /JURITY 1SIMPION
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - %¢€0 pLEE ®1) (@) ssaadxy ary vrerunopy
- - %¢€0 9887 %¥0 (3594 %S0 (3404 %S0 6LI'S %S0 680°S %L'0 ££8°9 %90 9¢8°L %90 L¥6°9 %T'1 V6'S1 (1) sowpry esopy
L7384 194824 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (91) seumTy 13(ssaadxy
- - - - - - - - %E0 TULLT %C'T TS0°€L %Z0 S9vT - - - - - - (1) soumpry surejq ye19
%ZC9 LELEY %8L 8€S6L %89 000°0L %L'S 981°6S %8S 120°65 %ET 9HEYT %0 +96°C %C'0 160 %C0 69.T - - 1) ssardxg @usTRUO)
%81 L1881 %ST LOV'ST %6C 9CZ0¢ %8C 866°8C %ST 0£0°sT %T0 90+'T - - %S0 S€0%9 %lT 665°GC %¥'0 194 (1) ewo)
%T'1 L6LTL - - - - %90 9T8° %T0 09L1 - - - - - - - - - - z1) sourpTy vobnmnw)
%Ll 8EE°LT %67 998°6C %TT 6€2TT - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (11) sumpry offe vemoWwy
%068 9ILI6 %E6 8L0%6 %9°11 9ZEGIT %01 8TH'LOT %89 122°69 %L'8 £56'T6 %1Y Ty %6T [45:84% %¥0 T - - (o1) ssoadxy 1594 womoUTY
saumaTe Jnwwod /reuoctdsy
%o'89 006°90L %ETL LLO'SEL %669 01L0ZL %169  [BIGIL  %L¥PL  9S0°GSL  %E6L  €69°9¥8  %S'16  TIBYI6  %L6 1222811 %096 LTETIT  %¥L6 TL6'S8T'L
%10 Lz %10 L] %L'0 'l %10 €8T'1 %T'0 AT %0'T SEETT - - - - - - - - SI3EYD)
- - - - - - - - - - %ST §€9°9C %10 8161 - - - - - - (6) soupTy prenguep
%I1'1¢ +61°1Z¢ %9vE 6LLTISE %¥TE 9THYEE %I1TE 8T %b'1E 17€°L1€E %99T £€6°68T %0°LT 98T %0'8C LYT1¥E %T 0 0TLYLE %0°0¢ ST1°96¢ (8) seumpTy pavn

- - - - - - - - - - - - %9°9 S16%69 %l'L S05°98 %99 11028 %G6'S 61Z°LL (D soumry ppojy sues],

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - %8'L STE96 %L 8LG'LYT (9) =1y ouay
Y%l'L 666°8L %¥'L 689°SL %18 970'¢8 %E8 19798 %lL’L LT€8L %T'9 ¥1299 %S9 120°89 %99 +T6'6L %¥9 660°08 %TS L1689 SIUIFY 1SOMIPION
%Il GILTL - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (S) sowrETy 1S9MpIN.
%0 GEST %S9 61099 %8'L $9£°08 %¢E8 91T's8 %89 LS1°69 %901 858711 %081 122061 %L'0C L18°15C %6'ST TI'L6l %681 €F9°6¥T SUT Y WRq

- - %00 s81 %00 18% %01 186°01 %01 S6Z°01 %Sy T19°t¥ %¥'S 92695 %9Y €LESS %6y 86+°09 %9 9€T09 (#) soupry rausunuo)
%C'1T 680612 %T'0T +90°607 %581 +65061 %L'ST 856°191 %¢'0T §9€°507 %8'ST L0T'SLT %STC 065°9¢T %1'TT SSH69T %6°ST 8LI‘L6L %L'el €ECIRT SIUIPTY TRIRIWY

- - - - - - - - %8'¢ 6v2'8¢ %0 8PLY %¥'S SET'LS %9°S 006°L9 %L 09888 %6'L 0€5+0T () soummTy 153, TOmAWIY
%T'C 187°¢E %S¢ L4413 %0°¢ L69°0€ %9°¢ oHLE %S sT8'cE %L1 (43801 - - - - - - - - @ vy yoedany

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - %T'1 ¥ZS'st - - (1) 7y ssaoy

saurre reuoneu /ofey

Te101 Jo IqUINN 301 yO Jaqumn T&03 yo Jaquump] Tel01 yjo IqumN o1 jo JaqunN] Te101 30 nquUINN 301 JO I2QUIMN] Qo1 jo JaqunN o0} jo IqQUINN Texos yjo IquUmN]
02134 U0 DI JudJ 10213 10213 DI flizaien g pLeaen g DI
L00T [ 900Z [ S00Z | Y00T | £00C 1 T00T [ 1007 [ 0002 | 6661 I 8661 |

(psupnenn)

LOOT - 8661 “T€ 39quIada(] Papud Ivak o1 104
SYIONHSSVd TANVIANA 4O SHEVHS ANITIIV
O—UEDAOU aww-.ﬂu&m OEO—OU
vodiry redpwnyy sfupdg opuoje)



Ly

(panumuoo) '§19100J Joy 9ffed Furmorjoy 995 210N
%0001 0£8TEE 1l %0001 E6CLIPT %0001 BLL'STST %0000 SELEIST %0001  b6LOLST %0001 SLITZ8'T %0001 9T9L6L'L %0001 95y'156L %0001 SOTBII'T %0001 8C9TEOT LA
%10 TELT %10 SET'T %I°0 679°'1 %10 €127 %10 €8 %80 ILp'st %01 9¢b 81 %b 0 SIT'L %0 619°c %10 096°1 uwq)
%6 8 S8T611 %901  §99°0ST  %9T!  LIST61  %0TI  S$89981 %601  898TLL  %I'TI  bLO'IOT %001  +96'8LI  %L'8 THPILL  %8'L €90°991  %9'S 6EL'EIL
B B - - - - - - %10 L8T1 %C 0 1SE€°€ - - - - - - - - (1€) Jouadng
- - - - - - %E'0 0£6°¢ %E0  PE6Y %E0 667 %T0 LY6T - - - - - - (0£) a1y souepung
%L 0 L9L'6 %S0 PEL %0 L16's %Z0 $19'T %0 6p1'T %10 [91:01 %10 6851 - - - - - - (67) a1y eurry Aoy
%E'9 [112:%3 ] %¢€8 LTE'LIT  %TOL  996'SST  %L'6 L68IST  %L'8 TUS'LEL %68 £98°791  %I'L SITLZT  %l'9 PER'GIL  %S'S 9ELLIT  %EP 0z1°L8 xgpag
- - - - - - - - - - %10 96b'1 %T0 £SY°E - - - - - - (87) a1y areiodio)
%6'1 8L9°ST %81 L6EST  %0'T PE96T %81 PrT8T %L1 9T6'9T %Sl L1§°9T %b'T 658'ct  %9T 8091 %ET ey %ue'l 619°9T ssaidxg swoqiy
sampe ofiva-y
%016 €IPTIC]  %E68  L6£S9C1 %EL8 TE9CEEL %6L8  LEBPLETL %068  S60'E0bT %I 88  OE9P09'1 %068  9ZT009'1 %606  66LTLLT %0T6  €TS8S61 %EP6  6I6916'1 sauTpry 10fuassed [e10L
%S LT 091°L9€ %TST  6ECLSE  %LST  10E'T6€  %08T  LEULEY %LIT  ELLTHE  %89L  B06W0E  %UT'L €L9'6TT  %E'S 6P1'201  %6'€ 1L1'28 %l SP8‘T9
- - %90 STh's - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (£7) (ssexdxg paun)) SOUILTY S2181§ SUBIY
- - - - %S0 669°L %S0 68b°L - - - - - - - - - - - - (97) (uonoUU)) UBOLIDUIY) SAUILITY Sa1BIS SURL],
%S9 T50°L8 %L ¥ 09109 %8t Z09°€L %LOl  6LIL9T %I POPLZL %S9 LO9'8IT  %LT €0E'6Y %60 $89°91 %9°0 pIETI %90 19€°21 (57) (uonsauuoQ w[aQ) IsamANS
%10 LIS %T0  TE9'T %10 Sp9'1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (bT) QTUTMAAUINTY 1S3MYLON
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - %S0 851°6 (£2) (am) sseadxq Jry uremunopy
- - %S0 9089 %9°0 T %L0 06L°01 %90 096°6 %90 92001 %80 9TTPL  %El S9T'ST %Il L80%T %91 TLL'TE (z7) soury Bsopy
%0'L 609°€6 %T'8 TYLSIT %L'6 IvE'LPl %8 €1P'8T1  %S'S LOPL8 %S9 WO'LIL  %T€ 866'LS  %ST 00L'8Y  %b0 €L18 - - (17) (ssaxdxg 159 BoUBUIY) dnolD Ty BSO
%8'b TIEY9 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (02) souTTy 1rssoidxy
- - - - - - - - %P0 919°9 %9°L 0Z6'8T %T0 891°¢ %00 %0°0 %00 - - - (61) soutpry surejq 12010
- - %0 829°S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (81) souTHTY 13(-0D
%Lt 69 %6'S €LTY8  %l'S 78T8L  %bY 2ET'89 %0y LLT'E9 %b'l LP9'ST  %E0 8L6Y %T 0 €E1°E %L 0 orL's - - (L1) sseidxg [ewaunuo)
%81 15962 %b'T SE8'EE  %TE 9008y  %0'€ 99ELY  %6T pLY'SY  %T0 L90' - - %b0 99¢°8 %9'L L88°EE  %b0 $s5°8 (91) (uonsewuo) eipq) Irewo)
%IL L66'P1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (S1) (ssardxg [ejuaunuo)) seurTy Enbneimey)
- - - - - - %S0 899°L %Z 0 SIST - - - - - - - - - - (1) vonsewo) vesuUuIy) saulTy enbneimey)
%51 00102 %8'T 86L'6E %Ll ¥92°97 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (£1) offeq weouowry
1Mo pus [puoiday
%S €9 £52°548 %19 $S0'806 %919 TEE0P6 %665  OOL'LEE  %ELY  TTEV90'T %EIL  TTL'G6T'T %818  £5SOLV'T %9°S8  0S90L9T %I'88  TSE'OL8'l %I16  $8O°SS’l
- - - - - - - - - - %S T 9% %l 0 6vET - - - - - - (1) sounry prenSuep
- - %6'T EETIP %9E 1SSPS  %T6 STTHPT  %0TL 618881 %IP1  HPTIST  %LPL  TIEIT %861 190°98E  %TIT  8HOTSY  %6VT  LT9'SOS SSUITY payN)
- - - - - - - - - - - - %19 010601  %b'S 0L 90T %E'S PSOELL %09 £89°Z1 (11) seulUTY plIop suwl]
%8'ST LST'EVE %TTT  LIEVIE  %TIT  686T2E  %EL 80PPIT  %TE $T5°08 %0°T ¥8L'9E - - - - - - - - (o1) (ssaxdxg powup)) seuITY 1S9MAYS
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - %S'L 065651 %L01  0SI'8IT (6) 1y ousy
%L 61756 %S9 1€€76  %TL YL9'60T  %EL 08bPIT %S9 602201  %S'S 996°001  %9'S 8L9°I01  %9'S L1980 %T'S 9THIIL %y 768°68 SOUILTY 1SaMUHON
%'l z€L°01 - R - - - - - - - - - - - - (8) SUTITY 350MPIN
%€ 61Z'sy %SE 9888y %TT  Q0EWE  %S'E  8T0YS L0  9Y - - - - - - - - - - (1) (ssoadxg povm)) dnosp a1y esopy
%L'E T0¢'6y %L'S 060718 %89  88SYOI  %L9  0OVYOL  %T9  PI9L6 %P6  TEHILL %8I T6TOEE %8l ¥BE'6SE  %bEl  B6I'98T  %SBI  $90'SLE sewrp 1y Bl
- - - 95T %00 8% %60 9l %80 9ILTT  %LE TEULY  %lY 99058 %LV 9LLT8  %bb L90V6 %Y 196'78 (9) seumry [ejuaunuo)
- - - - - - - - %60 6S6'Cl  %EO  £68°S - - - - - - - - (5) (ssoadxg payun)) 3820 SRRy
%L 61 £5'95T %E0T  €6£°L8T  %ELl  TLOVIT  W%TST  B9E'BET  %LOT  HOB'9TE  %S'ST  SLB'E9Y  %IIT  9IY6LE  %LOT  O6EE0F  %6El  T90'S6T %80l  [VIGIT SAUTTY Uesuaury
- - - - - - - - %9'€ 8LY°9S %0 L9TL %8 668°S8 %€’ £99°701 %08 00r'691  %TL S16°9¥1 () SOUILITY 1594 BOLISUIY
%6'C 18L°8€ %0°€ 8YSTY %b'T 060°9¢ %6'T (3 Xe4 %L'T SIT'ey %8'1 6€T€ - - - - - - - - () werSory
- - - - %60 18°€1 %69 10$°801  %b'0l  TYE'E9l %19 S96'IIT  %E9 1€2°€11 %29 689°0Z1  %T'9 SOTIEL %SV 16916 (2) (ss21dxq paup)) WsUOSIM Y
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - %0'€ T0L'E9 - - (1) Jry sse00y
feuonEu put zofep
SIUHTY JaZuasseg
103 Jo sjun €101 JO Sy 8101 JO sy [e101 JO SIun [e101 JO sium 2101 Jo SIun €101 JO siun 18101 JO sjun 0130 sjun [e101 JO Sy
U0 Q0001  WAdXRd  q-000°T WA q-000°1  W0Idd Q0001 WM q-000°T WP q-000°]  MW0Idd  q-000°1 LR Q0001 IWedldd Q000  UMowd  qi-000°1
| L00T | 9007 | $00T | ¥00T I £007 | 2007 [ 1007 | 0002 | 6661 I 8661 ]
(poupneun)

L00T - 8661 ‘1€ J3qUI03(T PIPuS s1eak Y Jog
IHOIAM qIANVT LAVIOYWIV TVONMOLSTH
opeiojo) ‘sfuudg opeiojo)
yodiry edomunpy sfuuds opeioje)



"9007 W isndny pue ‘Ang ‘auny ‘Areniqay ‘Arenuef 10§ 35IAI3S PAPIAOL "$00T

8y

*SPIOSAY 3 wodry redmunpy suudg operojo) :2omog

*£00T ABJA 2914105 0T1ed pasead pue [0z Arenuer 1 Junres 9o1A19s 081ed papodar rouadng

"$00T PQUDAON UL MIAISS Pasea)) [00g Arenuer ul Sunrels 901A1ds 08185 payrodal mry souepumg

1007 Arenuer U1 Junre)s 201A19s 08res papiodar my sumAsy

*Z00T AIn[ 901A19s 03180 Pasesd pue [ (07 Arenurer U Fumres 901105 081e0 papodar 11y sjerodio)

'9007 22quizndag yBnoxy 9007 Yorey wog ssaidxy poyup) se paesado souly saje)§ swer],

'S00T 2unf Y3n0Im $0O7 ISNINY PIUMSSI 9IAIDS “$OOT ATnUe[ Ul UORISUUC)) UESLISUIY SE Poresddo SIURITY SeIelg SUeL
6661 [udy urede ao1a1ss uefoq “UORIAUUOD BRI SE 8661 9GO0 0F S661 22quada(] oy podire g paalas JsoMANS
'£002 80BNy pue ‘An( ‘3unf 39IAIS pIpiacIg

quia}da§ 30IALSS PANUPUOISIP PUE GOOT AUN[ OTALSS UeFq A[IEUULJHUITY ISIMGUON
'8661 ATenIq3] 03 9661 9qEIR03( WO Hodite 3q) ParLas ssaxdxy My UEUNOW
"900T JPQUIAON 30IAIDS PANURUODSTP SIUHTY BSIN

'6661 1240300 UL 30IAISS PaLIRs SsaIdxH I5ap BOLDUIY

"L007 Tudy 2o1Al0s weSaq souriny 10ssardxy

"€00T YPIEIA JO SB 30IAI3S PAsBA]) [T 12qOI00 Ul 3IAISS PIIIES SULTY Sute]d a1
'900T UF 1340100 pue ‘squistdag ‘Areniqag ‘Arentef 10§ 2014138 papiacxd (ssaidxy peyrm)) ssmny 19(-0D

2007 1udy w uteSe 251Ales poumsay

1007 1qudss ySnony ARy 9914195 Paplacld "000Z ARIN JO SB D1AISS Pasea)) ‘6661 2240100 UT 301A12s payre)s ssardxd [ejusunuo))
"Ion2eUu07) B[3( S 7007

I3qUIAD3(] UT 9IIAIDS PAUMSSI JeUI0)) (00T [UdY JO 5B 30IAI3S Pasesd Pue UCKISUUOD) BIS(] St 8661 120 U S0IAIS PIUIE]S BWIO))
*L00Z ARIN 901105 paddo)s pue ssardxy [elusunuo)) Se /07 ATEnue[ ur a01AIds UeSaq saulpTy enbneyney)

$007Z AInf 2o1A39s paddogs pue HORSOUUO)) URSUAWIY SB £0(0Z JOqUISAON UI 301AISS Uedaq somITy enbneyney)

"LOOT IDAWIAON KIADIR Pasesd PUe G(Z dun( 901Aas weFaq SSUTTY 9[8eH UweoUsury

'suogesado e pasead Apuanbasqns pue uonsayoid Loydnayueq 103 pafy prendueA ‘7007 ‘0¢ AINf UO "T00T JOQUEROA(] OIAIIS PayIe]s prendue A
"100Z J0qUIS03(T UI SIUI[ITY UBOUSUIY (M PIZIOUI SSULTY PHOA Swel],

'2002 YOIBN 391A13s wedaq (ssaxdxy peyuf)) SSWMY 1SOMANS

'6661 12quizndag Ut samTry wesusury Aq parmboe sem 1y ousy

"LO0Z AInf 201A15S WeBaq SUTLTY JSamPIN

"£00Z 3Q0I00 IAISS Parress (ssaxdxy parup)) dnop ary esop

'L00T U1 SSa1dX [euatMu0) 03 ANANIE [[8 pue 7oo7 [Udy Sunrers ssardxy EaUBUOD 0} AANIE S) JO JSOW PILIJSUED [E)UIUTUO))

*£00T KBJN 90IAI3S PISEI PUE 70T JOqUISAON I0IAIS PapIe)s (onoauno)) ssedxy pamp)) 1seo)) dnueny

‘dnoxr) 1wy esojy Aq pajerodo ssa1dxr 159 BOUOUIY 0} ANATIOR [[B PALIDJSURN PUR $((7 J0qUualdag UI 90IAIDS PANUDUOISIP ISOA, BOLIDUIY
"7007 Arenuqo ur 201Alss weoq Jry JuetBoTy

"$00T 12q030() I01AIOS PINURUOOSTP UISUCOSI 1Y

6661 1PQUIAON 430Ny 6661 Suny WO 2011 papiaoid 11y ss300y

(poyprieun)

LOOZ - 8661 “[€ J9quIB03(] PApUD SIBAA a3 104
panuiuo)) - THOTAM TAANYT LIVIOEIV TVOTOLSIH
opeiojo)) ‘sSuudg opeiojo)
uodiry [edioungy s8uudg opeiojo)

£
1}
62
:14
LT
9T
ST

144
£T
(44
17
0T
61
81

Ll

N on ¥ O
— - -

—~ N+ wnwo~ooa 82



14
*sp30221 Juswadeurws odiy ‘sGundg opesojon) jo 317y :omog

13odary o 18 suonesado (e pasead

£puanbasqns pue vonoazoid Lndniueq pamy prenduep ‘2007 0¢ A UO "100Z I9QUIAdA(] DTAIIS PIITeIs prEnSUep I

*$T1TeD $593dXF Patru() st UTAIDS $a3EIG SUES], PUE I3 ANS ‘dNOID) Iy BSA ‘SAUIPTY 12[-00) “ISEOT) IMUERY ‘UISUOISIAY ITY JO sarmgredap sopnpuy ¢
‘100T F9quda(] W Autre papueiq Apieredas  se patesado aq o3 pasead A[p2andage pue [(0Z Supmp UesEswy o3uT
povesdarun sem v\ T, “s3urpaasord £ndnrueq ayp ySnomp uesmoury Aq paxmbore Apuenbasqns azem v T 3O

SIMIIQEI] UTEIIID PUE $39SSE 31 JO [Te Arenueisqns pue ‘[opg Arenue( ur uonosajord Axdnnjueq 303 pag VAL 21

*6661 I2quiaidag Ut saumITy Uedmoury £q parmboe sem Iy ousy [

“([urETY 1s9mpION) dEUUI] JO sarrredap sepnpul O]

"LOOT A 2914335 PILTess SIUTTY 1SOmMPTIN 6

OOON HUQEU>OZ UUEUm @US&GOU@% wuﬁﬂé mwuz w

*£1007 TBdy 901a19s pajzels souTpTy 1ofssoxdxy /.

mOON QUHNE UUEOw —uumNUU : —‘OON an—Ouuo OUEUw —uuﬁdum wdﬂﬂﬁH u.wuumu 9

.quB%Mw —UGN AGOﬁUUGGOU Nu_ve H—,«EOU .«O wOHEH«&v—u wv—uﬂﬁuﬂH m

*ssa3dxy [e3uaunUOY) Jo sormredop sepnpuy ¢

.waH&km quB Numuva{q .«O wUHEH«&v—u wO—uBAUGH m

.vﬁw.wm GNU«MUE/\ —uﬂd AﬂOﬁUUGEOU GNUﬂ—UE/\v wvaﬂé mUuSw wﬂdH.H \ wuaﬂé NZTB.SBNQU .«O wUHEH«&v—u wv—uﬂﬁuﬂH c

"Z00T ATensqa,] 251a39s pajIes Ty JueidsNy |
8¥ 6 43 ¥ 15 ¥ S Ly 0S Ly SOUT[ITE [PUONPU puE Jofew [e)0],
- - - - - I - - - - (#1) sourpTy prenduep
61 0z 0z 81 L1 <1 <1 €1 2} €1 (¢1) paamuny
- - - - - - 4 z z ¢ (z1) PPoA suel],
- - - - - - - - ¢ S (11) 317 ouay
z z z r4 z z z r4 z z (01) 3s9mmpION
I - - - -- - - - - - (6) sPUIITY 359PTN
- I z z z z z ¥ ¥ ¥ (8) esol
v -- - - - - - - - - (1) seurpTy 39[Ssardxg
- - - - I ¢ - - - - (9) soumpaTy sureld 189z
9 9 8 ¥l 11 o1 6 6 6 8 © upa
< S < < ¥ ¢ z z z r4 #) Twusunuo)
¥ 9 L 9 9 L 9 S S ¥ (€) 159/ Tomowry
9 8 L 9 L 01 6 01 L 9 (@ uveomwy
I I I I I I - - - - (1) v uedeny
- - - - - - - - C - Hq< wwvuu<

sdurpte [euone)N / Joflejy

L00T 900¢ $00C +00C £00¢ <002 100¢ 000C 6661 8661

(payrpneun)

LOOZ-8661 ‘1€ F2quad3(] PApU? sT8a4 oY) 10,
SANITAIV A9 SHINIIVIHA A TIVA AOVIHAVY
opeiojo)) ‘sduidg operojo)
wodry redprungy sSundg opesojon



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport
Colorado Springs, Colorado
RECENT TRENDS IN TOTAL AIR CARGO
For the years ended December 31, 1998-2007

(unaudited)

Total air cargo (tons) Percent

increase
Year  Air Freight Mail Total (decrease)
1998 18,432 4,996 23,428 --
1999 22,832 4,238 27,070 15.5%
2000 21,817 3,337 25,154 -7.1%
2001 19,767 2,221 21,988 -12.6%
2002 20,291 1,513 21,804 -0.8%
2003 18,161 527 18,688 -14.3%
2004 17,754 482 18,236 -2.4%
2005 16,568 157 16,725 -8.3%
2006 16,301 1 16,302 -2.5%
2007 13,475 0.0% 13,475 -17.3%

Soutce: City of Colorado Springs, Airport management records.
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